IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

)))

)

)) JUN 24 1997

CLERK

ROBERT F. WILKINS,

Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

DCA CASE NO. 96-1622 SUPREME CT. CASE <u>90,864</u>

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA STATE OF FLORIDA

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

SUSAN A. FAGAN ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 0845566 112 Orange Avenue, Suite A Daytona Beach, FL 32114 (904) 252-3367

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was convicted of vehicular homicide, a third degree felony. Pursuant to the sentencing guidelines, Petitioner's recommended sentencing range was 55.65 months to 92.75 months in prison. Petitioner was adjudicated guilty and sentenced to 85 months in prison.

On appeal to the Fifth District Court of Appeal, Petitioner argued that the sentence was illegal inasmuch as it exceeded the statutory maximum. The issue on appeal was the interpretation of the 1994 amendment to the sentencing guidelines in rule **3.702(d)(19)**, Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. Petitioner contended that, if the statutory maximum is <u>within</u> the recommended range, the amendment does not apply. The District Court disagreed and affirmed the Petitioner's sentence citing the Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Martinez v</u>. <u>State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January 29, **1997**) <u>opinion on rehearing 22 Fla.</u> L. Weekly D1009 (Fla. 3d DCA April 23, 1997) and also the Fifth District Court of Appeal in <u>Green v. St&</u>, 22 Fla.L.Weekly D614 (Fla. 5th DCA March 7, 1997) See Appendices.

Petitioner timely sought rehearing which was denied on May 15, 1997. A timely notice to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction was filed on June 13, 1997.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal <u>sub judice</u> expressly cited a decision of the Third District Court of Appeal, <u>Martinez v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January 29, 1997) <u>opinion on rehearing</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Fla. 3d DCA April 23, 1997) and a decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in <u>Green v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D614 (Fla. 5th DCA March 7, **1997**), which are both currently pending review before this Court in Case Nos. 90,679 and 90,696. Pursuant to <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981) and <u>Savoie v. State</u>, 422 So.2d 308 (Fla. 1982), this Court has the discretion to accept the instant case for review.

ARGUMENT

THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S DECISION RELIES DIRECTLY ON TWO DECISIONS WHICH ARE CURRENTLY PENDING BEFORE THIS COURT, SPECIFICALLY, <u>MARTINEZ V_STATE</u>, 22 FLA. L. WEEKLY D305 (FLA. 3D DCA JANUARY 29, 1997) AND <u>GREEN V. STATE</u>, 22 FLA. L. WEEKLY D614 (FLA. 5TH DCA MARCH 7, 1997).

Petitioner was charged by information with vehicular homicide under Section 782.071, Florida Statutes. (R 50) After Petitioner entered a no contest plea to the charged offense, the trial court sentenced the Petitioner, over defense counsel's objection that the sentence exceeded the statutory maximum, to an 85 month incarceration term. (R 44-47) In its opinion **affirming** Petitioner's judgment and conviction, the Fifth District Court of Appeal cited the following authorities:

AFFIRMED. See <u>Green v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D614 (Fla. 5th DCA March 7, 1997); <u>Martinez v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January 29, 1997).

Wilkins v. State, 22 Fla. L.Weekly D878 (Fla. 5th DCA April 4, 1997).

As this Honorable Court held in Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981):

We thus conclude that a district court of appeal per **curiam** opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by this Court continues to constitute prima facie express conflict and allows this court to exercise its jurisdiction.

Id at 420. Consequently, this Court has jurisdiction to review the decision rendered by the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this cause due to the District Court's reliance as controlling authority on the decision in <u>Green v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L.Weekly D614 (Fla. 5th DCA March 7, 1997), and the decision in Martinez v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January

29, **1997**), opinion on rehearing, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Fla. 3d DCA April 23, **1997**), which are currently pending review before this Court in case numbers 90,696 and 90,679.

Further, in <u>Martinez</u>, <u>supra</u>, the Court also rejected an issue involving the scoring of victim injury points and certified direct conflict with a decision of the Second District Court of Appeal. Although <u>Martinez</u> did not invoke jurisdiction on the same issue as in the instant case, once this Court accepts jurisdiction over a cause to resolve a legal issue in conflict, in its discretion, the Court can consider other issues properly raised and argued. <u>Savioe v. State</u>, 422 So.2d 308 (Fla. 1982). Since the issue <u>sub</u> judice will be argued in <u>Martinez</u> and <u>Green</u>, this Court has discretionary review to accept this cause pursuant to Jollie, <u>supra</u>, to ensure uniformity of decisions.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons expressed herein, this Honorable Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and grant review of the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision <u>sub judice</u> based upon the reasoning of <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981).