ROBERT WILKINS,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 90,864

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL AND THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

J SDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

D ENNIFER MEEK ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #0046061 444 Seabreeze Blvd. Fifth Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118

(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts of this case were not set forth in the district court's decision. <u>See Wilkins v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D878 (Fla. 5th DCA Apr. 4, 1997)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

If this Court accepts review of <u>Green v. State</u>, 691 So. 2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997)¹ this Court has discretion to exercise jurisdiction in the instant case. However, this Court has no jurisdiction over the instant case based upon the lower court's citation to <u>Martinez v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA Jan. 29,1997) <u>reh'q denied</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Apr. 23, 1997).

^{&#}x27;previously cited as 22 Fla. L. Weekly D614 (Fla. 5th DCA Mar. 7, 1997)

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT'S JURISDICTION IN THE INSTANT CASE IS DEPENDENT UPON ACCEPTANCE OF JURISDICTION IN <u>GREEN</u> <u>v. STATE</u>.

Where, as in the instant case, the district court's decision is a per curiam opinion that contains nothing but a citation to authority, this Court has no jurisdiction "unless one of the cases cited as controlling authority is pending before this Court, or has been reversed on appeal or review, or receded from by this Court, or unless the citation explicitly notes a contrary holding of another district court or of this Court." The <u>Florida Star v.</u> <u>B.J.F.</u>, 530 So. 2d 286, 288 n.3 (Fla. 1988) (citing Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418, 420 (Fla. 1981))

<u>Green v. State</u>, 691 So. 2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997), which is currently pending review before this Court in case number 90,696, is applicable under <u>Jollie</u>, and allows this Court to exercise its jurisdiction in the instant case. However, if this Court denies jurisdiction in <u>Green</u>, review must be denied in the instant case unless some other basis for jurisdiction **exists**.² This Court has no jurisdiction over the instant case based upon the lower court's

²Gerald Kogan, C.J. & Robert Craig Waters, <u>The Jurisdiction of</u> <u>the Florida Supreme Court</u>, Fla. B., J. Appellate Prac. & Advoc, Sec., May 1997 at 1, 8

citation to <u>Martinez v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA Jan. 29,1997) reh'q denied, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Apr. 23, 1997)

Martinez is not applicable under Jollie for several reasons. First, it is not *controlling* upon the Fifth District Court of Appeal, nor is it a contrary holding of another district court. Second, it is not pending review before this Court. Although certified conflict cases do not require briefing and are routinely accepted,³ this Court lacks jurisdiction of the case if the losing party does not petition for review. <u>See Davis v. Mandau</u>, 410 So. 2d 915, 915 (Fla. 1981) On June 24, 1997, Martinez filed his Notice of Voluntary Dismissal of his Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction filed on May 23, 1997, divesting this Court of jurisdiction to review his case. <u>See</u> Appendix B

Finally, even if <u>Martinez</u> was controlling authority which was pending before this Court, <u>Savoie v State</u>, 422 So. 2d 308 (Fla. 1982), does not give this Court discretion to consider the point at issue in the instant case. <u>Savoie</u> holds that once this Court *accepts jurisdiction* over a cause in order to resolve a legal issue in conflict, it may, in its discretion, consider other issues properly raised and argued before it. <u>Id.</u> at 309 This rule does

³Kogan, C.J. & Waters, <u>supra</u> at 10

not provide that the collateral issues may supply the means for invoking jurisdiction.*

In sum, this Court had discretion to exercise jurisdiction in the instant case only if this Court accepts review of <u>Green v.</u> <u>State</u>, 691 So. 2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997).

⁴This is consistent with the rule that no briefing on jurisdiction is permitted in certified conflict cases, inasmuch as the collateral issues could not be *raised and argued* prior to the Court accepting jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing arguments and authorities, respondent respectfully requests this honorable Court decline to accept jurisdiction of this case, until and unless jurisdiction is accepted in <u>Green v. State</u>, 691 So. 2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997).